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MNoTIicE oF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Motice is hereby given that 35th Annual General Maeting of Pak Leather Crafts Limitad
will be held on October 29,2022 at 6.00 PM at Plot No. 9, Sector 59, Malir Development
Authority, Taiser Town Karachi to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To confirm minutes of the 34th Annual General Meeting held on October 29,
2021.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company
for the year ended June 30, 2022 together with the Chairman's Review,
Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon,

3. To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2023,
To elact seven directors of the Company as fixed by the Board in accordance
with the provisions of section 159 (1) of the Companies Act 2017 for the term of
three years. The reliring directors are Mrs.Rubina Saleem, M.Saleem Ahmed, Dr.
M.Shoaib Ahmed, Mr.Nayyer Ahmed, Mr.Azeem Ahmed, Mr. Umer Ahmed, Mr.
Ahmed Jalali. Retiring directors are eligible for re-election.

4. Totransact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

By order of the Board

Maseer Ahmed
Company Secretary

Karachi; October 07, 2022

NOTES:

A. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from 21-10-2022 to

29-10-2022 (both days inclusive) and no transferwill be accepted during this
period.

B. Transfers received, complete in all respect by the Shares Registrar,
M/s.JWAFFS Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd, 407-408, Al Ameera Centre, Shahrah-
e-lrag,Karachi by the close of business on 20-10-2022 will be considered in time
for the purpose of attendingand voting at the meeting.

C. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another person
as his'her proxy toallend the meeting and vote for himmer. Proxies in order 1o be
effective must be received at theRegistered Office of the Company duly stamped
and signed not less than 48 hours before themeeting.
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D. 3.Shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their

account/sub-account with Central Depository System (CDS) are requested o
bring original CNIC along with account number in CDS and participant's 1D
number for verification. In case of appointment of proxy by such account holders
and sub-account holders the guidelines laid down in Circular No. 1 dated January

26, 2000 issued by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan shall be
followed.

. Filing of Consent for Election of Directors:

. Any member who seeks to contest the election of Director shall file with the

Company at its registered office not later than fourteen days before the date of
meeting the following:

a) A notice of his/her intention to offer himselffherself for election as a
Director together with consent on Form-28 as prescribed by the Act;

b) A declaration (copy may be obtained from Registered Office) on the
matters required by the Code of Corporate Governance 2019:

¢) Detailed profile along with office address for placement on Company’s
website.

d) An attested valid copy of Computerized National Identity Card.

. Due to COVID -19 situation, members are requested to strictly follow all

applicable SOPs,

. Video Conference Facility:

As per Companies Act, 2017, If the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical
location, to participate in the Annual GeneralMeeting (AGM) through video
conference at least seven days prior to the date of AGM, the Companywill

arrange a video conference facility in that city subject to awvailability of such
facility in that city.

. TheCompany will intimate members regarding the video conference facility

venue at least 5 days beforethe date of the AGM along with the complete
information neeced to access the facility.

. E-voting

. Pursuant to SECP S.R.O No. 254(I)/2018 dated February 22, 2018 members

may also exercise theirright to vote through e-voting.

M. Transmission of Annual Financial Statements through email
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The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 along with
reports have been placed al the website of the Company.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide SRO 787(1)/2014 dated
September 08,2014 has allowed companies to circulate annual balance sheet, profit &
loss account, auditors’ anddirectors’ reports along with notice of annual general meeling
to its members through e-mail.

Members who wish to avail this facility can give their consent.

STATEMENT U/S 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Selection of independent directors:

In compliance of Section 166(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 for an independent director,

consent paper will be accepted from those persons who are compliant of Section 166(2)
of Companies Act, 2017.
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The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Annual report together

with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2022.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The financial results of the Company for the year under report are shown below.

2022 2021
Rupees Rupees
Profit / Loss before taxation {1,320,929) 7.940,159
Taxation (1,579,1486) (763,149)
Profit / Loss after tax (2,900,075) (8,703,308)
Accumulated (Loss) Brought Forward {356,396, 608) (347,693,298)
Accumulate (Loss) Carried Forward (359,296,681) {356,396,606)

During the year under review, the company made a sale of Rs. 132.935 (M)
comparing to 108.363 (M) last year. Sales has increased by 23% over previous
year, This is the outcome of the foreign business trips of the management to
Dubai o attend Asia Pacific Leather Fare and business development meelings
with the three perspective customers in Indonesia, during the year under review.
The Company registered an after tax net loss of Rs. 2.900 (M) for the year under
review as compared to after tax net loss of Rs 8.703 (M) last year.

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS' REPORT

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern:

Company’s directors have injected funds as and when required by the company
and it is evident from financial statement. The management is regularly working

according to its business plan and improving year on year basis to continue as a
qgoing concern. Management is confident in this regard.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING

In compliance with the applicable listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange,
the directors of the company do hereby declare the following:

a) The financial statements prepared in conformity with the requirements of
companies Act, 2017 by the management of the company, prasent fairly
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in
equity.
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b) Proper books of account of the listed company have been maintained.

) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of financial statements. Accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment,

d) International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure there
from has been adequately disclosed.

e) The management is of the opinion that the company has sound system of
internal control,

f) The Company’s ability to continue as a going concem is effective as
discussed in Note 1.2 to the financial statements.

g) There has been no material departure from the best praclices of corporate
govemanca, as detailed in the listing requlation.

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA:

The key operating & financial data is mentioned on Page No.19

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

The (loss)/eamings per Share is (Rs.0.85) 2021: (Rs. 2.56)

BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board Audit Committee is comprised of one Independent Non-Executive
Director as Chairman and two Non-Executive Directors as member of audit
committee. The terms of reference include reviews of annual and quarterly
financial statements, internal audit report, information before dissemination to
Stock Exchanges and proposal for appointment of external auditors for approval
of the shareholders, apart from other matters of significant nature. Four meeting
were held during the period under review,
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NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING

During the year, four board meetings were held, which were attended by the
Directors as under;

5. No. Names No. of Meetings
Attended / held

1. Mrs. RubinaSaleam 414

2. Mr. M. Saleem Ahmed (CEQ) 414

3, Dr. M. Shoaib Ahmed 4/d

4. Mr. Nayyer Ahmed 4/4

8. Mr. Azeem Ahmed 4/4

B. Mr. Umer Ahmed 4/4

T. Mr. Ahmed Jalali 4/4

PURCHASE / SALE OF SHARES

The Directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor

children did not purchase or sale any shares of the Company during the period
under review.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2022 is annexed with this report.

AUDITORS

Present auditors RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman retire and being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointment for the year 2022-23.The audit committee has
also recommended their reappointment in the forthcoming AGM.

SOCIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

Being a conscientious member of the corporate community, the Company
contributes generously to various social and charitable causes including towards
health and education sectors. In this regard, it has worked with many reputable
organizations and associations, Currently our organization pays maonthly
contribution to Pakistan Tanner's Association Southem Zone Environmental
Society. We are humbly paying for students studying at Naticnal Institute of
Leather Technology and have made our unit available for students to visit yearly
and examine how leather is prepared. We also provide internship for graduating
students to help them enter the market with confidence.
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The Company is fully committed for acting in an environmentally responsible
manner. To achieve this result, we:

Ensure our product and operations comply with relevant environmental
legislation and regulations. All our chemicals are (Registration,

Evaluation, Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals) REACH cerified
and our leathers are tested at random in various countries where we
pass with exceptional resulls, We certify our leathers do not contain

chrome 6 or AZO Dyes or any other banned substance or hazardous
substance,

. Maintain and continually improve our environmental management

systems to conform to the stringent requirements as dictated by specific
markets or local regulations, As such we are fully cooperative with
Effluent Treatment Plant requirements.

Operate in a manner that is committed to continuous improvement in
environmental sustainability through recycling, conservation of
resources, prevention of pollution, product development, and promotion
of environmental responsibility amongst our employees.

UNIDO-GEF, in collaboration with PAKISTAN  TANNERS'
ASSOCIATION has initiated a restoration project for Korangi Sector 7-A
which shall improve the overall infrastructure of Sector 7-A. The project

involves complete overhauling of sewerage, waste management, roads,
and solid waste management.

Leather Working Group has become an important part of being
sustainable in leather industry. LWG is becoming popular in India and
Bangladesh. Its purpose is to provide a clean and efficient working
environment for workers, As such, The Company has shown interest in
this initiative and will most likely be bronze certified by end of 2022. The
cosl of this project is estimated at Rs. 5 Million spread over £ years,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The statement of compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance is annexed
with this report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The business environment in the Country remains challenging. The Country is
passing through a critical phase due to political and economic uncertainties.
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With the rising dollar disparity we are now able to cater to mare cuslomers. We
can also expect further orders in subsequent year as a result of business trip to
Indonesia, done during the year under review.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to place on record its appreciation to all our
Patrons, Suppliers and Employees for their valuable help, uncompromising
support to the Company,

WORKER MANAGEMENT RELATIONSHIP

The board of Directors would like to place on record the valuable contribution of
all members of the staff & workers. The workers management relationship
remained cordial throughout the year which resulted in the smooth operation of
your company.

On behalf of the Board

\ﬂr 2.
Muhammad Saleem Ahmed Umer Ahmed
Chief Executive Officer Director

Karachi: Oclober 7, 2022



Y, P 5 SHE V- O PRSP S, 2022230 LA mEFE

) .Fiff(,;:r'

- T L
W, AP R SORI IOV e L P

2021 2022

7 o
(7,940,159)  (1,320,929) o lde St
(763,149) _ (1.579.148) 1
(8,703,308)  (2,900,075) AP e B
(347,693,298) (356,396,606) VLT Gl )it P
(356,396,608) (359,296,681) Wl T (ol )t

ﬂ:‘.:-f's,jJJLr:-fﬂt:JFr’ LI ACEY d’7 1 .,:;'3]'132-935|;.‘er ,',,;{g,ll.u:i =4 Fle 4]
LI pivciniondad tesjfd Bl 2o (Ppyc & 0+108.363
L,;JLIJ{._F___-’EE':: u':-s':.fli'.:"._i. :...'.-fj::’h.': .-'l""":--_a-d;l.:':._frf J}i/'i-j..l.f' ..L-i’:':_h :l;ili.-": Ffli'u,.fl.r}!

th;ii'i:}|?fhﬁ'ﬂ=;L-;;_,"'IE-._,'E.T'J-'!FJTHQéz,gﬂ(ef:ﬁ#;hrmiulbaf ot K
- Pl & ne8 70385l

fu',.d:":; iy L;’}J.r'ﬁ 57
JemE S P EE Y
= Jxﬂ t-*'-li:'i-..;._ i T .:-‘-:lfdlur st A (Bt ¥ .:-J:;':‘:'Lz?r';:':n._-i: i J}gj'ii L«E':'r

e slPlra L Ip Nl s .,_5'-.:,_-::: Hrunlis il ._F;f':-:' Jo{ DR AT LE

11



e
._‘.—..n'.;";..r =ty

._EJ# L-!-L-’L.HI:.:J_;':F'
3L "‘rcl l|__.|

T
L—h-L-mbflh.- |'_.-.-|' -.'_.-':’ iy |,_..|.p--"||.|,.,.-'i'.;.:I II-‘.|_,. e:...-..-',_,.-r"gf._..-rf'._.tt.-.- Sk

-c_:.q_,ﬂ:f.:.i.ﬂl.,:;!bl_,w

CNASRE ratlr QAL NI L,201705 SR E1lF
U e Ly -, (7

-..,:-*i’_’_,r“,r*r_L_')__-wL:*LLJZ._,u'_grULEWZ--';'L, ¥

VAP T B Gl UL Bt detodil. %
e bl .:g'

26k St S Gl o Gwot o/t A b B S0
-l

~a Ll Jfru gt sl [N 1] Y1

i Fls Jasralodltt 28 i lee Sra M el P o (28, %

- uf Sl dd u"i",f | e - J-'-}u'-l-;a vy P ¥ F:lr‘;f‘rq.:"rf W

:%jljyhih}"rr‘i]
g 19 A3

d.ﬂ-?"-:ll.]'

ce (e 2,2.5657) 20214 3,(0.89) LA A3 /3T

& 4T

Jip s ,_,,l-"“’} M :F!?;&gf |l 22 ;5I:-“'.rrf;-'_fyiﬁ:E N .j‘*r LT
PN (VO S (STRVSIRPNSE 11 NS TE T QSR PO Aoy S ales s W 1)
eind carFlesit JEr GG AT S s L Lot ..-L:""‘éﬁ

12 L e



« Bl
..i.-J:':.' ;_.-/vg_.-lj

i LJL;_E:" LT

LRI S 4 Y - Hf{h.f;:ﬁ;'jf;kgriqvl Lot

:Fﬁ:"g".-.-f;;,': e et JE
4/4 i ¥ -4
4/4 (ATl s b r
4/4 FO _r
414 gt Bl
4/4 At "
414 Py R
4/4 Bl &

:;_J;ﬂ,;jd’}jf
S fi(j‘JJLLJ{.,_"’,.-LUJ!'-LJ._{KUU|.-J'H..='||;-!§J|J-,.-‘. T r’ﬁ;lmi.;.“ﬂf;;
S Al P

-'JE:.E) riﬂﬂﬁ
e AL ey 2022007 30,63 FK Ll 2

:j‘,.ﬁ-_if

L‘-‘.r:‘ A _\JJII.-J"E‘J'HSPE- EDEE Euzﬂﬂ'u -—r.-' L:J‘;IL“F'I::.EI.I*_:" ':Iilr‘-.Fb';lle:fr‘:ﬁ_:T|J£§"
- JL,- JWJJJJqu‘J IEJJJ;,"L,CJ?_':'UIE.-‘ Ui L..l‘:fn_"r.TT..'r.‘_

LGyl e
a2l s e U=l s F ol Lnelo bl FL;';!AG:;{;E'
JHS VbR L ARG S TSy el e e 32 P J 1)
SIeB T2 IR 3B SS Lfrl,'.'rfl.n,_,.:;._J,r:lrr.,_,"r'd'r"l.-ﬁu'va Ao

e

13



- W

14

s k ok
..‘;.-J.;'u i B
e T S A e

i - ¥ - " J
Sl gtk MMyl fge /ondel 2Ll S et
A0 Sen s ."_rrd"'l.-k,.r.‘.'_*.,jf-l. Fedl :E?r:ri_.l"'g":*rlff;.rﬁr‘f -.f_y'}g ‘o v e d.ﬁé
LA

:f.#' Jr-’.sif;c-l,,w-;d PPLASH A SR iy AUl &'{

K G sy /., AT E S IR U= S Y 7 o T
3 A LB P am ot s (Sl =i, Al AR )
DRI 5, 201 V- M L OE 29y Lodsd AU e bl fe
-..f_uﬁiﬁff} (PRI PUY L;:rl 7l J&EDLE[":.J’J

N B L AP 5 WP TS B UHAAT O L 2l
_BL S IRL s npSarpatses ML L b P

L aler B ST L o S Ga st it a2 S b il

nppidl S 00\ L S G s J I

Pt 6§ T-AEE = AL Hisn #ot/L L UNIDO-GEF -

Mooty 6L P NS TGP P PISALT-A o

-.r:_JLtJ'l;J::U‘;J:-:'f:“.;ﬂ-ﬂJ
¥ = L-'?’-'E: P PYIT ) ..‘F-ij-:u;lfl..-lg. thr_ﬂ?r“f I .,_EI'E"..L H fG:.;.l: .:-‘:"".a.hrl.;.- ! l‘r:-g’:!.n'..tll
S F QAN et AP v Sl £ i Sssd b e i/ e
S I 2 JL_JU'JL <R, 202200 e ll-'u;'i:,-_,f: 1!

- b s urL,.!Lﬂ.t..G’I.;_d.'..-.f.:Fl'

:.&ffﬁ{.ﬁlfﬁ u‘fu" g if KT
- AL —t .r|_,.-"'|,_..-".':rf.:-: .-g' A 751':1.»: L:,'Lﬁf.hT.-)J'{;,ﬁ';



.
..t.-J;;ufgﬂj

:ﬂ/prﬁ
_J_LJ;)‘,F_,.,_,.J*_,HQ_,,J';,_;: L-JURUEE e it
if‘*n;j.-'h.'lﬁj"_k-:!ﬂr-..;_,q £ ‘r:f".-’; =il 'L.-—-.:“lr.- 'JLH_--.- !Ir"’“.-"":l.,.’fd.u? .j.,-'l.!

_& Jr"—-é Jmad ||i.rs.-"l.p.-'u‘-|_, .;_": .'rd"‘;,_, 3ibiTe :-.a-ﬂf'l,.-’:-.",:-

A
ML Sz ou s oS & Kt ik i B A A5 ST
-0 D'ﬁrﬁ‘m?i;‘i#j;rﬁ;

'-..'-l.ﬁ-"-fl"-{:flﬂ:ﬁirﬁj
il e s L gt i dehif 5 e f.;.n E’._-,",-ﬁ'r'L-'rri e AL AT b

LFJ__. i L,-J‘.-"'-lfljiu d' I.L.lti-i—-i_.l _;.f'rfu_-m!"._.:—'&-'r

T b

A 218 ;’15'.1:]":* i
020227107 200 1 L\

15



L

=

16

Chairperson's Review

| am pleased to present to you a review of the Company and role of the directors
for the year 2021 -22.

During the year under review the Board duly discharged its responsibilities with
respect to the overall management of the Company, formulation of significant
policies, evaluating its own performance and monitoring the functions of its
committees.

For the year under review, based on the evaluation, overall performance and
effectiveness of the Board has been assessed satisfactory.

Audited financial statements along with the audit report and the Board's report
are enclosed for members' information.

We seek blessings of Almighty Allah for success of the Company.

(¥
u'}f'?’"l’@jf

Rubina Saleem
Chairperson

October 07, 2022
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StaTemMeENT OF VALUE ADDED
s T TR

WEALTH GENERATED

TOTAL REVENUE
BROUGHT IN MATERIAL & SERVICES

WEALTH DISTRIBUTED

TO EMPLOYEES

SALARIES, BENEFITS & RELATED COST
TO GOVERNMENT

INCOME TAX, SALES TAX, IMPORT DUTY
AND WORKERS' FUND

RETAINED FOR REINVESTMENT &
FUTURE GROWTH

DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

2022

(RUPEES)

132,935,018
(92,228,326)

40,706,692

32,940,104

4,854,916

2.911,672

40,706,692

80.92

11.93

T.15

100,00

2021
(RUPEES)

108,362,969
{69.616,626)

38,746,143

31,162,916

5,580,441

1,993,966

38,746,343
e




SiX YEARS AT A GLANCE

(Rs. in " 000)
PARTICULARS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

MNet Sules 132935 | 108363 | 216,613 76,580 51,688 | 45286

Giross Profit{loss) 13,407 3773 21,095 14,5404 1,875 fil
MNet Profit{loss) before tax (1.321) (7.940)| 51,084 06l (4.773) (4,790)
Giross Profiv{loss) (% ) 10.08 1.48 9.74 19.46 3.63 0.13
MNet Profitiloss) { %) (0.99) (7.33) 23.58 6.61 (9.23)]  (10.538)
Eaming/{loss) per share ( after tax ) (0L85) (2.56) 14.35 1.22 (1.56) (1.54)
{Current ratio {0.28) (0.28) ((.26) (0.32) (0.30) 2.26
19
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STATEMENT OF CoMPLIANCE wiTH LISTED COMPANIES

(Cope oF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
ST A

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
mannar:

1. The total number of directors is seven (07) as per following;
a. Male: 06
b. Female: 01

2. The composition of board, on the date of this report is as follows:

Independent o - Mr.Ahmed Jalali
Director . _
- Dr. Muhammad Shoaib Ahmed
Mon-executive - Mr. Azeem Ahmed
Directors - 03 —  Mr. Nayyer Ahmed
Executive Directors 02 — Mr.M. Saleem Ahmed
-  Mr.Umer Ahmed
Female Director 01 —~ Ms. Rubina Saleem
(Mon-executive) | __|
3 The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a direclor on more

than seven listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supparting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy
and significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of

significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.

B. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act (the Act) and the Regulations.

o The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her
absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(Cooe oF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
ST

The board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.

The board of directors has a formal policy and Itransparent procedures for
remuneration of directors inaccordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Directors have been apprised and are well conversant of their dutias and
responsibilities. Four out of seven directors, have minimum of 14 years of
education and 15 years of experience on the board of listed company and
therefore exempt from Directors’ Training Program. The remaining directors will
undertake directors’ training program in due coursa.

The Board has approved appointiment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and lerms and conditions of
amployment.

Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the board.

The board has formed following committees comprising of members given below,

a) Audit Committee:

Ahmed Jalali | Chairman _
Dr. M. Shoaib Ahmed Member
Azeem Ahmad Mambar

b) HR & Remuneration Committee:

 Umer Ahmed _ Chairman |
Nayyar Ahmed | Member |
Azeam Ahmed Member J

The terms of reference of the aforesald commiltees have been formed,
documented and advised to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meatings of the committee is as follow:
a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committea: Yearly

The board has set up an effective internal audit function and the staff is
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant
with the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given
a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CopE oF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
| e P ——————

registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and minar children do not hold shares of the company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by
ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have nol been
appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these

Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed
that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard,

18.  We confirm that mandatory requirements of the Regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and
36 have bean compliad with except the following;

~ The requirement of number of independent directors under Regulation &
will be met in the next election of directors of the Company which is to be
held on October 2022.

19.  Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 8, 7,
8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 are given below;

~ Training for remaining three directors will be arranged in due course.

~ In view of the size of the company and its operations, the management
believes that internal audit function is being effectively performed by a
single person being head of internal audit.

- Formation of nomination committee and risk management committee |s
under consideration

- CFO and the Company Secretary is one and the same person due lo
small size of the Company.

-~ An Independent director will be appointed as chairman of Human
Resource Committee after next election of directors.

- Manual of significant policies will be uploaded on the Company’s websile
in due course as the wabsite is currently under updation.

. mtar‘laﬂty level will be defined by the Board in due course.

o0

RUBINA SALEEM
CHAIRPERSON

October 07, 2022
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RSM Aoy Hyher Liagusat Magrman
Chartered Accountanis

Fiae Chambeds, V-5

Sikandoer Malhi Road, Canal Park

Gulberg I, Labome, Pakistan

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REFORT T: 407 (42) 35872731 3
TO THE MEMBERS OF PAK LEATHER CRAFTS LIMITED (THE COMPANY) F:402 (42) 15872734

ahoreErasmpakisianpk

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED www.rm. glabal /pakistan
IN LISTED COMPANIES {CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewsd the enclosed Statement of Compliance walh the Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governante)
Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2022 in accordance with the requirements of reguistion 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibiity for compliance with the Regulaions is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsiility
i5 1o review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the
Hagmmmmﬂmmmmmmwwmmmmwmmﬂmh
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prapared by the Company to
comply with the Regulations.
Asapartﬂuwauﬂnnheﬁmﬁlmwmmummmmwmnrﬂumﬁumm
control systems sufficient fo plan the audd and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whethar
the Board of Directors’ stalement on inernal control covers all risks and conbrols or fo form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal contros, the Company's corporale governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Commitiee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Commities, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, s related party transactions. We are only
mql.'ladﬂﬂhﬂﬁarﬁuradmﬁumﬂmismmk&mmwmmmﬂ%mmﬁnrmmﬂﬂdpart;u'trarrsadm
by the Board of Direclors upon recommendation of the Audit Commitlea.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our aftention which causes us to believe that the Statement of CompEance
doas not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in al material respects, with the requirements condained in the
Regulatons as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022

Further, we: highlight below instances of non-compliance with certain requirements of the Reguiations, other than Regulations
3678273233 and 36 as reflected in the paragraph references mentioned below where these are stated in the Statement of
Compliance.

5r. No. Paragraph reference  Description

1 18 Less number of independent directors (Requiation &)
19 Non complances with cestain Regulations other than Regulation 3,6.7 8,
27,32.33 and 36 as detailed in the said paragraph. @f‘

RSM AVAIS HYDER LIAQUAT MALUMAN

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Lahore

Date:

UDIN: CR202210226M0Ekay WhR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT To THE MEMBERS OF
R T T AT e
PAK LEATHER CRAFTS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinian

Wa have audited the annexad financial statemants of Pak Leather Crafts Limited {the Company), which comprise the
statemant of financial positicn as at June 30, 2022, and the statemant of profil or ks, Lhe statement of comprahensive
income, the statement of changes in equlty, e stalement of cash flows for the year hen ended, and nates 1o the
financial stalements, including a summary of sgnificent accounting policies and other explanatory mfarmation, and wa
state that we have oblained all the information and explanations which, 1o te best of our knowladge and belief, were
racessany bar the purposas of the audil

In our apinion and 1o tha best of our information and acconding to (he expianations given o us, (he statement of financial
pasition, the statement of profit or loss, the stalement of comprshensive income, the stalemant of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows iogether with he notes forming part thereol conform with the accounting and reporing
slandards as applicable in Pakistan and ghve the informalion raquired by ihe Companies Act, 2017 [XEX of 2017), in the
manner sa required and respecively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2022
and of the loss, the comprehensive loss, tha changas in equity and itg cash flows for the year than ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Indemational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicabsa in Pakistan. Our
resparesibilities under those standards are further dascribied in the Audor's Responsibdiies for the Audit of the Fnanclal
Statements section of ouf report, We are independant of the Company in accordance with the Intemational Ethacs
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopled by the Instilse of Charbered
Accountants of Pakistan, (the Code) and we have fulfifed our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We befieve thal the audit evidence we have ctlained ks suficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion,

Material Uncertainty relating to Going Concern

Mede 1.2 1o the financial statemants states (hal the Company incured loss of Rs. 2.9 million (2021: Rs. 8.70 milkan)
during the yaar. As al the reporting date, its equity is negative by Rs. 20227 million (2021: Rs. 206.03 milion) and
current fiabilies axcesds its cumant assals by Re 22025 milion (2021: Rs. 222.13 milkon). These evanis and
conditions, along with othes matters 35 et forth in Note 1.2, indicate the existanca of materal uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability 4o conlinue a3 3 going concam, Our opinion ks nol modifisd with respect 10 Lhis
maker,




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT To THE MEMBERS OF
R i e - T e
PaAK LEATHER CRAFTS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Emphasis of Matier

Wa draw aftention fowards Mote 19 o the finandal statements which indicatas that no provision is made in respect of any
cost of junds since inikation of cases, as the same depends on the Wlimate decision by the relevant forums and the
quanbum of cosl of lunds cannol be delarmingd af this stage,

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those matters thal, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our awdit of the Snanclal
slatements of the current peod. These mallers were addressed in te contexd of our audt of the financial stalements as a
whabe, and in Torming our opinion thereon, and we da nal provide a separale opinion on (hese mallers.

W have deteminad that here ane nd kiy sudd maflers bo communicals in our report excepl those discussed in matenal
uncertainty refated to going concem and emphasis of matier sections of tha rapor.

Information Other than the Financial Statemants and Auditor's Report Theroon

Management is responsile for alther information, The ather information comprises the information nchided in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditar’s report thereon,

Dur opirdon on e financial stalemonts doas nol cover the olher infarmation and we do not axpress any form of a3surance
conclusion thenson.

In conmaction with our audit of the finoncial statsments, owr responsibiity is fo read the other infarmation and, in doing 4,
consider whather the ofher information is materialy mconsistent with the financial stalements or our knowledge obtained in
e audi or ofherwise appaars Io be materially misstated, If, based on the work have performed, conclude that thare is a
makerial misstaiement of this other information we ans requered 1o rapor Bat fack. Wa have nothing 1o rapod in this regand.

Respansibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statemants

Managamant & responsils lor the preparabon and fair presentation of the Bnancal stalements in accordance with (e
accourding and reporing standards as applicable i Pakistan and the requiremants of Companies Act, 2017(XD0 of 2017)
ard for such infernal contral a8 managemant debermings is nacessany fa anshls the preparation af financial statements thal
dre fre rom material misstatemant, whelhar due to fraud or emor,

In prepading e fnancal stalements, managemant is responsible for assessing e Company’s abilty to conlinue a3 3
paing concarn, disclosing, a5 applicable, mattars related 1o going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting
unless management either intands to Fquidate the Company o 10 cease operations, of has no realsic altemative bul to do
10,

Board of directors is responsibie for averseaing e Compamy’s Tinancial reporting procass.

25



26

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
e e il ]
PAK LEATHER CRAFTS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Auditars Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur obisclives ana bo obiain reasonabie assurance aboul wheher the financial statements as a whole are free from malenal
mrisstatement whether due o fraud or error, and o issue an audilor's reporl that inchudes aur opinion. Rsasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol & guarantee thal an audt conducled in accofdance wilh [SAs as
applicabla in Pakistan will always detect a materal misstalement when it ateds, Misstatements can arise from fraud or eror
and are considered matedal i, indridually or in e aggregate, fhey could reascnably be expecied to influence the
eponomic decisions of (=ers aken on tha basis of these financial stalements.

As paet of an audit in accondance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we axercise profiessional judgment and maintain
professional skepticam throughout the audi, we also:

s |denfily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due bo fraud or amor,
design and parform audit procedures respansive o thase risks, and obtain audd evidonce that i sufficient and
Wﬂhmﬁﬂaﬂﬂhm@ﬁm.ﬂeﬂ#ﬂnﬂ%nmﬁﬂmlwm&m
franud i higher than for one resulling from eeor, as fraud may invobv collssion, forgery, infentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or fhe cvemida of intemal control

«  Dbtain an understanding of internal condral relevant o B audd in onder to design audit procedures thal are
Whmmm.ﬂmhhmﬂww@nmm:maﬁm
Company's infemal condrol.

«  Evaluale the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasanableness of accountng astimates and
rafatnd disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use af the poing concem basis of accounting and, based on
the aud® avidencs oblaingd, whether a material uncartainty axists retabed to events or conditions that may casi
ﬂpﬂwﬂhﬂmmﬂuﬁqmﬂmhmwﬂuaasamﬂm.ﬂmmmawtammm
uncertainty exists, we are raquired 1o draw afienson in our auddors report 1o the relaled disclosures in e
fnancial statemants or, i such disclosires are inadequate, lo moddy our opinion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidanca obtained up 1o the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or condiians may cause
the Company io cease to conlinue as a going concem.

»  Evaluabe the overall presentation, structure and cortent of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether tha financial statemants represend the undarhying fransactions and evenis in a manner that achieves far
presentation,

W communicale with the board of dreciors regarding, amang oiher matters, the planned scope and timing of the audil and
significant awdit ndings, including any significant deficiencies in internal conirol Bat we identily during our audil.

We alss provide the boand of directors with a statement thal we have complied with relevant ethical requiroments recarding
indepandanca, and lo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought bo bear
on cur independenca, and where appbcable, relsted safequands,

From tha matiers commuracatied with tha board of directors, we deferming thoss matlers that wera of mast significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the cument period and are tersfore the key audil matters, We describe these
maliars in our auditer’s report uniess law or regulation praciudes pubikc disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremaly
rae circumstances, wa deleeming thal a mafler should not be communicated i our repord because Ihe adversa
cansequences of doing 5o would reasonably be expecied o cubweigh the publb: interes| banalils of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opanion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b} the statement of financial position, the statement of profil of loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
stalement of changes in equity and the stalement of cash flows logether with the notes thereon have been
drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and refums;

¢} investments made, expenditure incurred and guaraniees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).
The engagemenl pariner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Inam ul Haque. Q—F

RSM AVAIS HYDER LIAQUAT NAUMAN
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Lehora

Date:

UDIN: ARZ202210228gqjncESxb



STATEMENT OF FinanciaL Posimion As at June 30, 2022
TR T WL

m
[ Fupoes | Fupors
ASSETS
HOM CURRENT ASSETS
Propesty, plant and eguipman ] 33,543 501 32 268,006
Lang tem depesits 7 1,408,612 1400612
35,353,513 13ETTEIE
CURRENT ASSETS
Losrsa toods 135 386 g 3
Bl in frade A 53,303,439 50,758 BTH
Trade dobls B 2478 T84 16,171,124
Advances and other ecaivabla 0 3,405,195 3,810,704
Tax refunds due fram Governmend 1 1390 210 4 127473
{ash and bark balances 12 2.530, 744 4,334 10
85442 747 Br.ae7 T
TOTAL ASSETS 130,758, 260 121.251.351
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AMND RESERVE
futhirized share capial
5 (00, 000 crdinary shares of Ry, 10/- each 5U{HIIID|ZIII 50 E-:HII
|ssued, subscribed and paid up capita
3,400,000 cedinary shares of Rs. 10/- sach fully paid in cast 34,000,000 34,000,000
Loan fnom direclors 13 123,020,039 116,363,584
Becumulaled loss [I50.206881)  (356,396.606)
[202.276,642)  (208,033.012)
HON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long beerm loan 14 9,67, 596 12237165
Dalerred intenest mcoma 15 7703 B4 5149, 735
17,176,500 17378880
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Shorl term bark borrowings 16 112,529,905 112,520,505
Curent partion of lang berm financing 17 46,503 419 48,503,418
Intoresd | mark up payabie B9, 200,158 £9,200,158
Trade and other payables 18 55,475,705 58,867,553
Provigon lor tacation - mooms tan 1,444 317 1263830
LUnclaimad dividend 141 508 142 508
5 RO 052 309,807 473
CONTINGENCIEES 19 -
T 7 5
Tha arnéxid nobes fofm an mlegral part of thesa financal stalemans \
i
Lit
MUHAMMAD SALEEM AHMED - MASEER AHMED UMER AHMED
Chisd Executive Chied Financial Offier Director
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STATEMENT OF ProriT Or Loss
For THE Year Enpep June 30, 2022

o b ooam
DAty 20 13293508 108 362 5&9
Cost of zales 21 146 527 689 104 509 421
Gross peofit 13,407 059 3TTIE
(Oiher incoma 22 2h79.817 6,504 158
16,085 8T8 10,277 538
Administraivg capenses 23 12,689,581 11,876 530
Safling and distribution expenges 24 4 (68 557 4 B28 508
Finance Casl 26 49,227 1,514,869
17407 805 14,218 085
{Liess) for the year bafora tacation (1,320,529 (7 540 155)
Prevision lof taxaon L] 1,570,146 163,145
(Loeax) o the e (2.800,075) (8,703, 308]
(Logs) per share - Basic and dilutid a7 085 {2.56]

Tha annaced noles form an integral pan of hese Enpncial stalemants

| I
Ny UA

MUHAMMAD SA1 FEM AHMED LIMER AHMED
Chief Executive Chief Financial Offier Directar
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INcOME For THE YEar Enpep June 30, 2022

T R e Pt
} | an |
[Loss) for tha yaar (2,900 075) (8,70, 308}
Othar comprehansive incoma
Tokal comperehensive {loss) for tha yeai (2,800,075] (8,703,308

The annened notes form an inbegral part of these financial stalemants

A e B

MUHAMMAD SALFFM AHMED HASEER AHMED UMER AHMED
Chiaf Executive Chisd Firancial Offier Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EaquiTy For THE YEAR EnpED June 30, 2022
T I T e R

Issued,

Rkincitoad and Loan from Accumulated

directars loss

paid up capital

Balancs a5 al Juby D1, 2020 4 000, D00 G157 444 (M7683,288)  [(253515854)

Tatal comprehansive loss for the yeal

(Loss] for the yam . . {9 7003 A0RY (8,703, 308;
Cthar comprahensive income 2 )

(B,703,308) . (B,703,308)
Transactions wilh cwmens

Loan oliained ; £5 208, 150 . 56,206,150
Bagance as of June 30, 2021 34 000,000 116353584  (356.396.606) (M06.033.012)
Tokal comiprehensive loss for the year

[Loss) for tha year - - (2,900,075 (2,900,073

UIF-E-'-:’.DI‘I'ﬂ!EI'IEHE-':E' Come - -

(2,500 ,075) {2,500 075
Traraction with owners

Laan abtainad : B ARE 445 : 58 445

Balance & al June 30, 2022 34000000 123020036 (350 206,581) (202 278642

The anfesed notas fofm an mtigral part of thess fnancial stalaments

./ T W W)
i’ A .|
l/ P
MUHAMMAD SALEEM AHMED MASEER AHMED LIMER AHMED
Chiell Exacutive Chiaf Firancial Cffier Director
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STATEMENT OF CAsH FLows For THE Year Enoeo June 30, 2022

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
[Lass} Sor fha year bedorg taxation

Adjusimen fof non-cash changes and other ilems
Depreczation
Balances writlen back - nil

Cazh flow before worlng capaal changes
Changes in working capial
{Incregsal | docraase in curngnt a4ty
Sloros, spanes and loose tools
Silock in trade
Trade deblis
Advances and ofhes ricenvablas
Tan refunds due froem governman
Increass | (decrease) in current liabilbes
Trage and other payables

Cash (used) in operations

IncaeTiin i il

Mal cash [zeed) in oparaling acivitsey

B} CASH FLOW FROM INVESTIMG ACTIVTIES
Aglditions in proparty, pland and squipmeen

Mel cash fused) in investing Bcthvisies

C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lisan fromm dirncior cblgined - ral

Repaymen] of shor lerm bank bormgwangs

Mt cagh generated from financing actiilies
Mz [decreasa) in cash and cash equivalsnls

Cagh and cash equivabents al the beginning of the yea

Cash and cash equevaiants al tha end of the yed

The anrexad nobes form an integral pan of thase

~ A

WSMEEHHHED

financiad stalements

(b

Chisef Fimancial Offier

Hoile

(A+BeT)

(1,320829)  (7.940.159)

2011672 I 1,963 967
{2.506,653) {8,504, 388)
405,019 (4,510,421}
(3150100  {12,450,580)

46,055 (63,154}
455437 | (13.435.240)
{7,307 B35) 7,079,663
358,640 2,181,655
791,462 4,288,111

(1,505, 185) 5,088,277
i1.50:,.236) B.938,812

(2417, 146) {5,510, B68)
{1,455 E08) [1.461,567)

AATI844) (6972635

(4,587 56T) _ (10.735,181)

6656445 56,206,150
{40,000 500}
B.656 445 18,206,150

(1803966)  (1,502,286)
4 34 D 5,036,578

zlmlm 4,334 Tl




MNotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
TR ET e T e e

b 1 |LEGAL ENTITY & NATURE OF BUSINESS

m Pak Leather Crafis Limited (the Company) is @ public fmfted company sicomaermted in Pakistan under tha
rapealed Companes Cindinancs, 1584 &nd 1s quoted on Pakistan Slock Exchange, The prnapal acihity of B
Cornparry |5 laather tanning and expor of leather and leather garmants. The registensd office ard mill of he
Cornparmy are situaled al Plol # 18, Sadlor 7-A, Korangi Indusinial Area, Karachi, in tha provinca of Sindh

The Company incurred loss of Rs, 290 millon (2021; Rs, 8.7 millian) during the year. As al the reporting
date, Is-equity i negabve by Rs. 200,27 milion (2021: Rs. 206.03 milkon) and ils current kabditios excsed #3
cufrend assols by Bs. 22025 millon (2021: Rs. 722 33 millcn) The Comparry i3 f2cng operaional and
financial probdams and has besn unahls 1o pay all (13 Babdibles on dus dales, The hank | hrascsl institutons. of
iy Compary harde fied susts for recovery of pulslanding Sinances and related mark up along with cost of funds
These factors indicale material uncerainty refated o everds and condifions which may casd significan] doubl
aboul the Company's ability ko continue &5 a poing concemn and, therefore, e Company may not be abba fo
reakize s assels and digeharns s habdles 0 ha rormal course of businass.

Thi Company 6 1aking measiues 1o ntreasa s ravenue and profitabiity. The management s nagofiating with
iz bankers | fnanciad institutions bor rescheduling | oul of court setlleménts. Ditectors of the Comgary hava
ajiclid furthed funds during the year and have underaken lo continue to suppord the Company and to injacl
hurthaf funds in thi ensuing years, as and when reeded, The managemen| baleves that its plan will mpeove

the fingncesl pogition and francial resullts of the Comparry and the Compeany will ba abla fo confinue a5 & going
Concam

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial siatements have been prepaned n atcordance wilh the accounling and reparting standards as
applicable in Pakisian. The seocunling and rpadng standands applcable in Pakistan comprise af;

- Irfematonal Financial Reporling Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Imemational Accouniing Standards
Board (AS8) as notified under the Compardes Acl, 2017 and

- Prenvesions of and directives issued ender the Companies Act, 2017

Witene provisons of ard direclives ssued under the Companies Act. 2007 ditfer from tho IFRS Standards, the
provigong of and diesclives Bsued under the Companies Act, 2017 have bean Tollowed,

| 3 |STANDARDS, AMENOMENTS TO STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Standards, amendments fo standands and interpretations becoming slfective in current year

Thiir bolkormang standards, amendments 1o standards and inffepralasons hav been offecte and ans mancatony

for financial statements of e Comparny flor the peniods beginning on or aftar July 01, 2021 and Shensfons, hawve
besit apphed in pregaring (ese financial stalemens,

n IFRS 4 = Insurance Conlracts, FRS T = Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures. IFRS 9 = Financlal
Instrumants,

IFRS 16 - Leases and 145 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Tha LASE has pubifshad ‘nenest Rale Benchmark Refcem — Phase 2 wilh amendmants thal address
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year endad June 30, 2022
| SN T R TR,

issuas thal might aflect financial reporfing afler the reform of an intarest mle benchmark, including il
raplacement with slsmative benchman rales.

Application of hese smendments did nol have any significant impact on the Company's Imancal
stalemants.

The IASE has publishod 'Covid-19 - Retated Rent Concassions biyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to FRS
1BT thal oxdends, by ona year, the May 2070 amendment that provides lessaes with an exempion from
assezzing whather 3 COVID-18-relatad renl concession i a kase modiicalon,

Apphcation of these amendments did nol have any significan] impad on the Company's fnancial
skatimants

Sandards, smendments o standards and interpretations becoming effective in the curment year but

nal relevant

These ace cortsn new standands. amendments o slandants and interpeetations that becarme efleciie dureig e
year and are mandatory for accounting periods of the Company beginnirg on of aher Juty 01, 2021 bt are
considared nof 1o be relevant 1o the Company's operafions and are, therafore, not disclosed in fhesa firancial
slalerments.

Standards, amendments to standards and interpretations becoming effective In fulure periods

Tha loliowing standards, amendments 1o standands and imlarpretatons have besn publishid and an mancxoly
for the Company's accounting pariods Baginning on or after tha efactive dates soecified heren

- Annual Improvaments to IFRS Standards 301 8-2020 ﬂy-:;a

The |1A5B has ssued Anrusl Improvemants tn IFRS Slandands 2018-2020. The pronouncement contains
amendments o tha lcllowing Financial Repoding Standands (IFRSs)

IFRS 9 Firancial Instrumants - Fees in the “10 par cend test for darecognition of financial liabiities. The
amendment clarifies which fess an enfiy inchades whan it applies the ‘10 par cenf fest in assessing
whelher o derecogniss a firancal Babiity, An ey includes only fees paid or received Batween the aniiy
(tha bamowar) and the Mender, including fees paid of received by ethar the ently of the lander on the
oiFsalrs, Deral

- WS 41 Agrcultura - The amendmant removes. the requirement in paragraph 22 of 145 41 for enbities o
axduda Inxalion cash flows when measuring fa fair value of @ beological assel using 8 prosan vake
technigie. This will ensure consistancy with the requinsmenls in IFRS 13,

Tha amendments are applicable for annual perods beginming on or afler 1 January 2022, Appication of
Ihoeesatr e miants (s nol axpecied 1 hava any signiicant impecd on the Comparny's inancial slalemens.

n (A% 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The LASA has issusd Disdosure of Actounting Polices (Amendments fo AS 1 and FRS Pracice
Statemant 2] with amendments tal are intended to help preparers in deciding which acoounting polices 1o
discioss in Eher financial sialements in the lollowing ways:
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BRi BNkl 5 Aow fequired o diaclese its materal accounting policy infrmation inslead of its akgnificant
acoouning polcies,

siveral paragraphs ar added 1o explan bow an entity can identify material accounting policy infsmation
ored 10 v examplas of when accounling policy infamrarion & el o be material;

the amendments clarify that accounting poficy infurmation may be mabirial because of its nature, oven if the
reladnd amounds are immatarial;

the amendments clacly that accounting policy information is material  users of an entity's fnancial
siabemonts would nesd i 1o undersiand ather matedal information in the Bnancial stabements: and

the amendments clanfy that if an antity discioses immaterial acoounting polcy infomation, such infemation
shall not obscure malensl accounting policy information,

In addiion, IFRS Practice Salement 2 has been amended by adding guidance and axamples to qplain
and demonsirate the application of the “fow-sten maberialty process’ fa sccounting policy infarmaton s
order jo support the amendmants o BAS 1. Once tha enfily applies the amandrments to 1AS 1, it is alsa
permitigd b apply (ha amendments to IFRS Praclice Statement 2.

The amandmants to 1A 1 are effiecive for annual perods beginning on of aflar 1 January 2023, The
amendrments i expociad b aflecl distlodurn of polcies in the financlal sioments,

IAS & - Accounting Policies, Changeas in Actounting Estimates and Errors

The [ASH has published Dafiniion of Accounting Estmates’ to help entiles In distinguish betesen
acoounting polcies and accounling estimates. The definlion of & change n accounting estimates is
repeaced with a definlion of accounting estimales. Undes the new definlion, Sccourting estimates ane
“monatary amounts in financal statements that sre subject 1o measurmant uncerainty”.

Tha IASE clarifies thal o change in accounting estmate Bhat results from new information or new
developmanis is nol ®e comection of an emor. In additon, the effects of a change in an ingut or &
measuteiménl lochnique used lo develop an accounting estimate ane charges in accounting estemates
fhay dio nal resalt e th comrechon of pricr periad orrors.

The amendments are effecive for annual pericds baginning on or after 1 January 2023, Applicafion of
hesa amandmants is sl expched fo have amy significani impact on the Compamy's nancial statemants.

The IASB has published ‘Deferned Tax relaled b Asséls and Liabiities arising from a Single Transaction
(Amendments to [AS 12)' that clanfy how companies account for defermed tax on Fansactions such a3
leases and decommissoning obligations. Accordingly, the indial recogrition axempion, provided in 1AS
1.1300]) and S5 1224, does nol apply to iransactions in which equal amounts of deducsble and tmbi
temporary differances arse on inlial recogrition. The amendments are effectve for annual reporting
periods begnning on o after 1 January 2023

Appiication of hese amendmands is not expectsd ta have any signdficant impact on the Company's finandial
Elalemants

n A5 16 = Property, Plant and Equipmani
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The LASB has published Propery, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds belore Intended Lisa (Amandments 10
IAS 18] from safing rbeens produced whils bringing an assat inkd the laeaton and condison nacessary for |
ko be capable of aperaling in the mannes inlended by management,

Tha standard In prohisd deducting fram the cost of an ibem of property, plant and equipment any proceads
from sellng items prodoced while bringng that assel |o the locabion = candilion repessany Tor i fo ba
capabla of oparating in e mannes iMended by managemant, insSead, an antity recognisnes e proceads
frorm seling such Bams, end e cost of producing these Rems, in profi o kKsa. An enlty apphes the
amendments mirospoctively only o items of property, plant and equipment that are brought o fe locabion
and condition necissary for them fo be capable of operating in the manner inlended by managermant on of
aftar the baginning of tha oarfiest period presented In the fnancial stataments in which The Sty frs!
appdes the amandmaents,

The amendments are applcable for arndal parods Beginning on o after 1 January 2002, Application of
these smendments is rol axpaciad o hive asy significant impact on tha Campamy’s financial statements,

[AS 3T - Proviskons, Confingent Liabilities and Contingent Assals

The IASB has published “Onemus Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Coniract amending (he standand
regarding costs a company should include as e cost of hifiling 3 coniradt when assessing whethat 2
COMATEZL 8 ONEPDLS,

Tha changes in Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Confract specify that thi “coat af hilfiling’ a
goniract comprises the ‘costs that refate dineclly o the contract, Costs thad nefate cereclly to a contract can
gither b incremantal costs of fulfiling that cordract (examples would ba direct labour, mabenals) or an
allocation of other costs hat relale direclly 1o fulfifrg coniracts (@ examgle would bé the allacation of e
depraciation changs for an fam of proparty, planl and equipmaent Gsed in lulflling e contract)

The amendments published (nday ara offective for annual poriods: begineing on or afler 1 January 2022
Application of hesa amendmards is. nok sxpaciad 1o hava any sigriicant impact on the Cempany's financial
stalemnants.

Standards, amendmanis to standards and interpretations becoming effective in future porieds but ol

Feddrvani

These are cerain new slandants, amandments Yo standands and inlerpretations thal ame aflecive from dfferent
Blune peninds bul ane congidensd not to ba relevant bo The Compary’s oparations, thenalore, not desciosed In
fhese financal stalemards.

m Slandards sswed by ASE bul not applicable in Pakistan

Foliewing new standards have been sswed by [ASE which are yel to ba notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicabity in Pakistan

FRS 1 - Firsl-tme adopton al Imternational Financlal Reperling Slandards
[FRS 17 - Insurance Conlracts
b 4 |BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial stalemants have been propared on the basts of hisloncal cosl corvenbion

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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Property, plant &nd equipmant

Property, plant and aquipment axcep! leasehold land and capital woek in peogress ane stated af costivaluation
less accumulabed depreciaion and imparment n vakes, d any. Leasahold land =5 slslad of cosl less
acoumuiated amorization and mpatrment in value, if any,

Depreciation is charged to stalement of profit or loss apphing the reducing balance mefhod ot the rales
spacified n propsry, plant and eqdipmant nobs

Depreciation on additions during the year i charged from the month in which assel is acquired or capitaiised,
while no dapeaciaion is changed for the manth in which sssat ks dispeead off. The assels’ residual vahuies and
useful bves are reviewsd al sach financial year end and adjusted If impact on depreciation is significant

Repais and mpintenanca costs are charped to statement of prafit ar loss during e pericd In which fhay are
mcirrid. Magor rorirwals and improvemsnls o capitalised

Gains of losses on disposal of assels, if any, are recognised 35 and when incumed,

Al pxpemdifure connected with spacific assels incurred during instaliafion and corstruction padiod are carmed
undar capital work in progress, These are franslemed to specific assety as and whan hase ssels &
avallable for ise.

The comgpany assaisas ol sach balance sheot dale whether thare i any indication Thal assets excapt dalemed
lix assats may ba impaired, if such indication axisis, the carmying amounds of such assels are meviewsd 10
assass whathar thesa are recorded in ecass of thelr recoverablie amounds, Wheee camying values excead tha
respaciive recoverabls amounts, assels ane willeh down io heir nscoverable amounts and i resulling
itfpairfinl 1053 Is recognised in profit and loss account, unless fhe relevant assels afe camled af revalusd
amounts, in which case the mpairment kass s beated 35 0 revalualion decreass, Tha recoverable amount is
e hgher of @0 eeseds fBir value less cosd (o 2o and valus inuse

When: mparmend ioes subsequenily reverses, The camyeng amounts al [he assels ae increased ko ha revised
recovarable amourts but Hmited fo the camying smounts that would have bean dolermined had no impairment
foss bean recogrised for (ha assels in prior years. A reversal of an impaimment loss is recognised immadiabsly
iry prafil or koss account

Bosrawang costs deneclly atiributabls lo the acquisition or construction of qualiying assets, which an assels tat
febissanty take a substantial paricd of time o et ready for their intanded use, are sddad o the cost of Bhese
assets, until such Sme as the assets ane substanliay ready for Heir inlendad use. Ivvesiment income eamed
o Bne lemporany invesimant of specilic bermraings panding their exponditune on qualifing assols is deduclsd
from tha bormowing cosls eligils Tor capilalisalion

All cther borrowing costs are recognised in profil of loss in the period in which they ans incurmed.
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Thase are valued a1 moving average cosl less allowance for obsolebe and sk moving Rems. lbams in tansd
arn valued al invoice value plus ofher chargas incurned thereon,

A L R e e B s £+ o Sl et ]

Stock in rade excepd wasies s valued ol lower of cost and naf realsable valua, Cost i determaned as follows

Rarw malerial Waighled average cosl
Wk it process .'-'.-.-Erng.-j n'a:lu!'a:!hr:!!:_; el
Finishad goods Auerage manufachining cost,

Waslos aré valusd o1 nel roalisable vaue

it realsable valus reprasants the estimated selling prica in the onfinary coursa ol Busness bss estimated
o8l of completion and esmaled cost necessary \o maie tha sales. Average manufacluring cosl incluces cost
ol direct matadal labour and appropriate manufaciuning overheads,

m Financial Instrumsnts

Measurarment al Ananeial assel
Initial measuremant

The Campany claesthios ils finsncsal assals info l'nln'.'-lng s calpgones
= [ walus thiceigh olhef CompranBEnsive INGHme {FVOCH:

- fair walsa hecuigh profil of less. (FYTPL); dnd
. maasuned al amoriized cost

A financial asset is inilizlly measured at fair walse phis frarsaction costs thal are dinstly atnbulabka o
3 geguisition, excenl FYTPL which s measured a1 fair value

Subsequent measurement

Tha subsequant measursment of financial assals depends on thair classification, as follows

Debt Investments at FYOCT

Those asssis are subssquantly measured at far value. Changes in fer value @ recogmized i olher
comprehensive incoma, Infenest markup incomss calculated using the effactive interest methad, forign
exchange gbing and losses and impaiment ana recogrized in the stalement of pro® or loss. On de-
recogrieon, gains and loases accumulafed in other comprebansive income mie reclassiied 1o the
sinbamet of peolt or loss

Equity Investments at FYOG

Thase assets ara subsequently measured a1 fair valoa, Changes in fair valse are recognized in other
comprehansive income and afe never reclassified to the slatement of profit or oss. Dividénds are
restognichad as incomas in the stalemaent of prafd o loss uniess the ddend clearly repnresents a recovary
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of part of the cost al e invesiment

Flnoncisl assels at FYTPL

Thess aasets are subsequently measwred at fair valse, Net gains and losses, Incheding amy inlerest
arkup of dvidand income, are recognized in th slatemen| of profit or loss.

Financial assets moasured at amonized cost

Thass assets are subsaquently measured at amortized cost uzing the efective interes! methad, The
ameriized cost is reduced by impaimment losses. Inbarest [ markup incoma, faraign axchange gains and
losses and impairmant ane recogrized In e stetermnent of prof or boss

Mon-derivative financial assets

All ron-gedvalive fnancial assets are indtally recognized on frade date | &, date on which the Compary
bacomes party o the respecive cortractual provisions, Mon-cemvale financial assets comprise koans
and recerrabies [hal am fnancial assals with fxed o delorminabile payments thal are not quoted in
Boive markets and inchudes brade debls, advances, other recaivables and cash and cash equivalents,

The Compary deracognizes e financial assets whan the contractual rights i the cash fows fram the
ik5eds axpire of It ranslers the nghts o receive the contractaal cash Nows in a transaction in which
substantaly al of the risk and rewards of ownership of Fe fnancial assals ame Iransfemed of it neither
frarafers nor retain subskantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does nal retain control
o fha lransfemred assils,

5,62 IFinanclal Eabilitios

Initial recognition

Financial kabslities are classified in the foliwing categories
- fair value throisgh ool or lass: and
= (lrar financial Kahiltes

The Company datermines the ciassificaion of its financial akdities at initial recogrition. All financial
kablibas ane recognized initially al tair value ard, in case of olber financial Rabilites alsa includa ity

attnbutably fransaction costs

Bubsequent measurement

The subsequant measurement of Brancial liablitios dopends on their classifiealisn, a5 lollows

Fair value through profit or loss

Financial Ratslities at fair valoe through profit or loss include Snancial iabiities held-for-rading and
fnancial liabilGes designaled upon initial recognition as being at fair valus Srough profil o loss, Tha

Company has not designated any financial liabiity upon rscognition as being at fair valua throogh profil
or oss
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After initial recognifion, afher Enancial liabiifies which are infanest bearng are subsaguantly measuned 3l
amortized cost using the efeckive interest rate medhod. Gain and lotses are recognized in statement of

profit or koss, when the labilies are derecogrizid as well as through eflactivg interest rale amaonzalion
PrOCEES.

The Company derscognizes Snancial iabiiies when and only when S0 Lompary's pbligations are
dischanad, cancelled of axping

5.3 |Offsetting of financial assots and financkal llabilities

Financial assets and Snoncial kabiities @ offsel and the net amount is reporied in the fnancal
staloments only when tha Company has currently legally enforceabie right %o sel-off the recognized
amounts and the Company intends eithar to S&ilie on & net Dasis o to realise the assets and 10 selle
the kabfities simulaneously, The legally anforoaable righl must nol ba confingent on future events and
st be erdorceabie in nomal course of business and in tha event of default, insabeancy of winding up
of the Company of (he counter partes

{Impairment of financial assets

The Company recogniaes loss alowances lor Expecied Cradit Losses (ECLs) in respact af financial
assets measured &t amortized cost, The Company measures loss aliowances al an amaunl equal ko
Hotima ECLs, excapt for e iobowing, which are measured at 12-month ECLS

- bk sseunities thal are determined to hawve ke credil gk a1 the reporting date; and

. piiner debd securities and bark balance Tor which credit sk (.2, ha niak of defaul occuming over tha
gapacied life of the financial insirument) has nol incraased significanty Since inSal recogrion

Loss alowances for recaivables are abways measured al an amound oqual 1o [fetima ECLS. Winhen
datermining whelher the credit risk of a fnancial assst has Increased significantly since iniial recognition
and when estmating ECLs, e Company considers reasonable and supportable informalion thal is
rebevand and avallable without undus cost or effcrt. This includes both quantiatve and quakalive
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credil
pssesemant ard including forwand-looking informaton,

The Campary assumes that the credit rick on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than pasl due for a reasonabé perod of me, Lifetime ECLs are the ECLS that result from all possila
defaull events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the porfion of ECLS
that resull from defaull events that are possibie within e 12 months after the raporing date (of a
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shorter period i the expaciad e of the insbrumant 5 hés than 12 months) Tha maximum period
ponsidaned when estimaling ECLs Is the maximum contractual perod over which the Company S
enposed to cred risk, Loss aliowancas for financial assels measured al amertized cost are deducled
from e gross carmying amount of the asseks. The gross canying amount of a Snancial assel is wiilen
off when the Company has ne reasonable expactatians of recovaning of & fmancial asset in L5 enlmely of
a poetion thomeol, The Company indradually makes an assessment with respect to the Hming and
amourd of wiie-off basad on whather there B a masonable expoctsion of recovery. The Company
axpecls no sgnificant recovary from the amaun wiilen ofl, However, financial azsels that are wattan off
could st be subject o enforcement acknities in onder lo comply with Ihe Compary's peoceduras for
recovery of amounts dus

Trada dobts, Loans, advances and other recelvables

Thase are class®ed al amortized cost and am ity recogrezed when hey are onginated and maasured at
fair value of consideration receivabia, Thase assets are witlen off when (hene is no reasonable expectation of
repovery, Actual credil lpas experiencs over past yaars is used Lo base the caiculation of expacied onesddl loss

m Trade and othar payables

Linketies for rade and other payables are camied at cast which is the fair valus of the corsdatation 1o bae pad
in fuiume Tor poods and serdees recefved, whether bilied fo the Company or not.

Conlracl kabilly represerts advances recalved fom customer for subseguent salas of the Compary’s
products.

m Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend is recognised as a Sablity in the period in which & Is spproved, Appmpniatons of prolits are reflected
in the statemenl of charges in egulty in the penod in which such apgropriahons ars mida

e e R e e T T B i e e Rl
Provisions are recognised when tha Company has a presant, legal or constructive obligabion a9 a resull of past
even, if ia probable thal an outflow of mssurces embodying esonamiz benefits will be required o satile (ha

obligation and a refable estimale of he amound can ba mada. Howaves, pronvisions re niviesed ab each
balance sheel dade and adjusted ko refied the curmant best eslimas,

s vt et — -+ S S S ]

Provetsion for currend laxation i3 based on |axable mcomea &t the curment rate of txtion after Baking o accoun
applicable tax orechts and tax rebales mvailable under the law
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Defesred tix i3 prosded using the habily methed for all temporary dilerences at the balance shoed dale
behweany koo Bases ol assets and Rabdlilies and their camying amounds for financial reporting purposes, |m he
regard, the effec on deferred taxation of the portion of income subject o final tax regime i aso considared in
accordance. with the requiremont of Technical Release = 27 of the Instibule of Chanered Accoundants of
Pakistan,

Deferred bax assal is recogrsed for ol deduoctile temporary differences and camy forward of unuesd B
bssaes, if any, o e exten hal il i probable thal taxable peodt will e avallable against which such lamporary
differances and tax osses can ba uliksad,

Difarred tax assets and labdilies are measurad ai tha (=x rale fhal i expecied bo apply 1o the penod when thea
assel is realised or the Rabilty is setled, based on tax raies that have bean enacled or subsianinvaly enacied al
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax charged or creditad in the income slaement, excepl in case of iems charged or credited &0
Rty in which case i is inchuded in equity.

m Rovenua rocognition

Revernup i recogrized at an amount thal rellecls the consideration o which the company s axpedied fD b
entitied in exchangs for ransleming goods or sanvices 1o a customsr, For this purpose, the comparry:

= idgntifies thd contrac] with a cusiomar;

= identifias the perdiomance chigations in $he contract;

= dedermings the iransachion price which lakes milo sccount estimaes of varable cofaideration, I ary,
and the Bme valug of monay,

- allocales the ransaction price to the separabe performance obligations, If applicabile, on the basis of the
relative stand-alone saing prics of each disingd good or sanics 1o ba delvarsd; and

- recognizes revanue when or 35 each periormance oblgalion is salished in & mannes |hat deplcls tha
transfor of condrel of the goods o senices prorisnd 1o i cistomed,

Determining e timing of the transfer of condrol = a4 a point in time of avar lime = requines judgemant.

The Compary = engaged in keather lanning, axpart and sake of leatber garments, which ganerally Incude
singha performance cbligation. Managemant has conduded that revenus from sals of goods be recognised at
tha paint in Bme when conlrol of the assat is ransferrad 1o the cusioemer, which = upon the defivery of goods.
Deltvery occurs when [he producks have bean shipped fo the specific location and the risks of kass have bean
transfaned (o the customars. The transfer can ba esihar in e form of poceplans by the customer of products
&5 por the sades condract or lapse of acceplance provision or the Company has objective evidence that all
critatia for acceptance hava been satished

Imvoloas are generabed al the poinl in time whan contral of the assel is transfermed and roverue is recognised

ol That poart in tima. Recevabla is also recognised when the goods are defiverad a5 this is tha point in Smae Bat
it considaration is unconditional because only the passage of ima i5 reguired befora tha payment is dus.
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m Cash and cash squivalents

{-ash and cash equivalents are camied in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash fow statemail,
Cash arsl cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with banks, books overdeawn and highly liguid
Ehor-anm invesiments st ang coméeribie o known amounts of cash and are subject 1o insignificant risk of
change in valkue.

Transachons in curmincies aiher than Pakistani Rupes ane recordid al the ratas of exchanga pravailing on the
dates of the iransactions. Al each balance sheol dabe, monalary assels and labilfies thal are denominaied in
foreign cumencias are relranslated al the rates prevaiing on e batance shesl dale except whane forward

achange coniracts have been enfered into for repayment of Babdlities, in that case, the rates contracled for ara
used.

Gains and ko535 arsing an relranslation are included in ned profil or loss for the period,

m Ralated party iransacthons

Transactions with related parfies are priced on am's lenglh basis. Prices for these Wansactions are
cetgrminged on the basis of comparable unconirolied price method, which sets tha price by reference fo
comparabie goods and sarvices sold in an sconomically comparabla markat ta 8 buyer unredsled b the sallar

m Lritsenl secounting estimates and |udgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 1ASs | IFRSs requires management 10 maks
Judgmanis, eslimales and assumplions thal affect the application of policies and reporioed amounts of assols
and liabdities, incomes and expenses. The estimates and associsled assumplions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed ko be reasonable under the drcumrstances, (he results of
which form the basis of making udgmants about camying valuas of assols and Fabiities that ane nol readiy
appanant from oler soutes. Actual resulls may déler from Theze estimates.

The estimates and underlung assumplions are reviewad on an ongoing basis, Ravisions fo accounting
galimatg ane recognisad in the perdod in which the eslimalas s revised

aignificant areas, other than those specifically discussed in these financial statements, requiring the use of
managamant esimales aro s folioes

(8} Determining the useful ives of proparty, plant and aquipment
(b} Provision for slow moving and obsolets stores and shares.
€] 'Wnbe doan of siock in brade

(d} Provision for Bacafion,

[g] Pronssion for doubtfd recenvabies

Functianal and presentation currency

These Brancial statemants ane presanted in Pakistani Rupea which = the company’s hundional and
prissgmiaticn curmancy,
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As W July 0, 2400

Cosl EIEEIET  GRANDSEY  BSARIAY E10AMT  TASADET TSO00 DAdD4d 1XRASRICH
ey b Smpreciabion - {11058  [(TIAL AT

1 (5558%] (AASLESE  [10BSQLTHA
i e e
Vet ook wabes B3ER VET el 0 11,897 137 09,135 BLATT 1,168, 552 548

Yoar inickind Jusa M, 2021
Oipesuing nest book. walue 5.2, 167 1Z=8600

LT W 19417 1,156 852
Ackibnra 1435130 137 55
Clepracirion chaspnd (356 I47) 15D 10 11547 33 340 ]
Clcrking med ook vals 5,383 T & 23 Bl 7181 T 4T, 22 ark

Ay of Jatol 33, T ) .
Cost 5,382 167 21 8 0N 37 538 543 § 140 04T T 245 54T a,0{x 7, B2, 143, 58 P03

Arsusmiated depreciaton . [HSSI1.26H)  (748803T| [B4RA06)  [57608) (LAELED) (MOSTR.E05
Bil bioi valse FHZI6T  BALaEiE 170050 BAT_ LB [T AT 0ET 241 ¥2.264, 006

Yoar ended Junae M, 232

Ciparireg = boch, v B.382 AT #3231 B4R 7 BES4S 141,150 CTAL iram il
it 3 NEODASD  L4DGSEE poh 00535 154,000
Dispraciaton changed . TADSIH) (1848 850 IS (BOOM) (LAY 15015
Cosngreftosk vk EWIAT  TH2STE  MSODA M0 WA Magm  maad
Ay of Jona ). 302

Cing A3E2598T  TASMA BBORTM  SMO0ET 7586112 TEOO0 10 MITADL  147.TT4.26R
Astumrinied depracaton . [BITITAE) (TETIOEME (MSTREAS LA EJJ‘.-‘TEI (@.108,07T) :'_'?EH-C' T
W b g &350 167 T3525'H  HaSEI8 740,192 BT ET2 15727 #3117 T 300

Lnrvzal radw of depewcistian - 0% 0% % % 1%

L1 Alocabon of depreciibon fof eyl W 8 LGS mm

Cosl of s it LTI 5T 1804 31
ADTER AN SN ; ) '-'--1_."'1'.. 18 0k

THETE | 1T

i3 Head office and poduclion faciily of e Conpary B lcated at Piol # 1A Secior TA, Korangl incusteal Araa, Haoschd, Pakistan, seauring 2557

R TSmO blau
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
TR T el B |

Py N S
R I TR N P e Y KR

Against uthties B3 192 B3 112
Crhers 56,500 566, 50
TR KT
E i FATOOE M TRADINE s b oSt~ ot =]
Fw matonal 12 008 654 G135 54!
Wark in probass 1823750 1269112
Finishid goods 25 5T 264 43 354 183

0, X 439 24,155 410

O PR ORI -t et~ i o AT

Linsecunnd
Considared pood
Local 785 218 T.159.262
Foreign 14,793 448 8,091 BET

JZATA,TE 15,171,038

m AOVANCES AMD OTHER RECENVABLE

Considered good

Addwances
Empioyeas 139,000 0,523
Suppiars 1,060,600 1,208 B34
Incoma fam 1,455,548 14581 Bl
Othisr recinvabda
Dty drawhack Ta0.507 1.077 380

-5 A AT0 T4
m TAX REFUNDS DISE FROM GOVERNMENT

Sales laa 2848 207 3,737 6Ed
Incoma b 453,012 1540 A
3,050 211 4.1 45

| 12. JCASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 5004 51,542
Cash al bank - In gurmen| accounis 2441715 4, 263,168
2 530744 4334 710

L Ry

L
; W, r.s
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 10, 2022
T F |

Fal Fird
Rupees

| 13. |LOAN FROM DIRECTORS

Laan from directors 3.1 123.020,038 116363 5%

These are unsecured and infersst free and are repayable al the discrefion of the Compary, The loans are
socounied for as parl of equity under Technical Relfease - 12 “Accourting Derecion Loan® istued Oy e

Inslibste of Chartered Acoouniarts of Paidstan

| 44, [LONG TERM LOAN

Linsecured
From dinecions assnca 12,227,155 14,601,356
Inte¢est markup on long fam loan 25,1 | 510815 1,814,940
13,746,200 16416315
Transfamed {o defared inlerest income 14.1 (4,073 504 (4,785,160

GUET2.956 12,237,155
SSEREL
m This is inberest free. Terms of repayment have nof bean dedided so far, However, B is confrmead by the lander
that rapanmmesnt will nod be damandsd within ndal 5 years, Thi kan & camed al amonzed oost, with ashmaked
repayrnenl b of 5 yeEs. The uneamed interest income & reconded as defered interes! income [Reder MNole
15)

m DEFERAED INTEREST INCOME

Defested bnlerest Income 5148735 2. TTa.2e4
Unwiniding of delerred intarest income 5.1 (1,519,835 {1,814, 949)
3 625 &l 560,575
Transfesnad from long berm ban 4 0773 Gt 4,188,160
T 703 BG4 5.149.735

ﬂ SHORT TERM BANK BORROWINGS

From baniking companies

Secmed
Expod refinance 7,703,829 87,709,924
Cash finance 10,250 06040 il 280,000
Hl,,nni"u_;- fnanca 4 6780848 46749,
Farcad finance 29,850 BE3 o5 450 BEd

18.1 172 520 n TTE, hea

m The facilities are expired. These are secured agars: firsd chame over curenl assels and frsl charge aver
fried aasets ranking parl passu with the chasge oreated in respect of long lerm firancing (Refier Note 17.1), ben
avar import and eapor documants @nd personal quarariee of direcloes of the Company, Cash Bands 5
sacurad against phedge of stack in rade with camying valioa of Rs. 16.95 million [2021: Rs. 16.95 milkan), AR
thess boemowings and ralaled mark up are ower due and the banks [ financial instiutions have Bled suils fof
recovary of thesa fnances along with relaled mark up and cost of funds (Refer Mote 19)




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
T I R TR T

CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING

221
Rupess
Secund

Dermand finance 468303 418 46,503 419

(ERN This = securnd agains! frst charge oves ied assets of the Compary ranking pan passu wilh the chaege
croabed in nespect of shorl ferm bank borowings (Refer Mode 16.1) @nd persanal gauranies of direcloes of e
Company. Tha principal and related mark up are overdus and e bank has fed suil for recovery of tha fnancs

alongaitts redatad mark up and cost of funds (Rafer Male 19)
[ ma2 | e
" Riposs | Rupws
TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES

Credilors e T 44 736 335
St liabiliSes 18.1 T.268.174 6,683,923
Advanos from cuslomars 18.2 304E. 3N 2 H0G, 104
Withhakng [noomd tax payvabls 1,184 385 542 153

m Thess incude remunaration payabla to chisl exscitive officer and direcions amounting o Re. 457 million
(2021: Rs. 1.93 millon)

m Agvance recaed from customer is recopnized &3 revenus when the peromance abligation, in accordanca
with tha policy as described in Maote 5.12, is salisfisd,

CONTINGENCIES

Bankers | finoncial irgfitations of the Company have fed suils in banking courts egains! the Company under the
provisions of Financial Instiutions (Recovery of Finances) Ordinanca, 2001 for recovery of owerdue shan ferm and
kg leemm hnances akong wish relabed mark up and cost of funds which the Company i defending, The Company has
haly provided Tor mark up Gl the dale of filing of suils by the banks / financal instilulions The amount of related
Cresthan loans is Fs. 15943 milion (2021; Re. 15943 milkon) and relpbed cverdue mark upis RS, 83,20 millon (3021
Rs. 89.20 millon). Mo provision s made in respect of any cost of funds since infhabon of cases, as fha same
dipands on the ullimate decision by the redavanl forums and the guatum of cost of furds can ol b debarmingd Bt

fnis staga,
| 2. |SALES

Export - Laathes IR 03,647 582 73,556 483
Local - Leathesr . 31041539
o3 647 5532 76,641 022

Local sale - Job work income -Laather Processing 47,533,815 36,893, 20
141,181 437 113,540,312

Less : Sales Tax (6,906,538)  (5503.368)
Add ; Rebate | duty deaw back 1,583,957 1,258,087
Commission and discount (2923 808) (532,082
TITEOE0TH 108 a2 960

N inchudas axchangs gain ol Ris, 2074 4710 | 2021 ; eochange loss ol R 209 508/ )
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
s S et s e ]

“m

Opering stock o finished goods 43,354,182 13,881,725
Cost of goods manufactured 211 101, 231,040 113,981 674
144 585 223 f47 B4 60
Less: Clasing stock of firished goods (25.057.264) (43,354,183
116 .5_! L O [ T

m Cost of goods manufachured

Raw materal cansumed 2114 B4,B12.323 78,500, 432
Salarlas, wiages, and benslits 25 938 410 73,530,580
Power, fuel and waler 11517672 8,402 362
Repairs and manisnance E5i4.708 3,907,103
Carriage and freight 28300 434,153
Rant. rates and taxes & 00 .

Capraciation Al 213471 1,874,329
Othars 186 44 246,100

110,199,440 117,085,508

WWOfK N proCcEss

Opening 7268112 3,245,483
Closing (16.237.521) (7,268,112
16,968 409 14023 bl

TO7.231 040 TTa061 81

Oipering balance 9,135,581 9,096 428
Purchases during the year 67,605 306 78,629,585
Avallable for consumplion 16,820,917 B8, 726,013
Chrsing batance (12,008 554) (8,135 581)

AT T T8 500 45

=r——

OTHER INCOME

Balanpes writlen back - sl 2,508,651 5,504,288
Otfesr 173 164




Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
LTI T e e D PR

Note iz £

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Direciory” enmyrsaralion 2B 5 400 000 5.400,000
Salaries and bansfis £.401 654 2,011,847
Telephane, fax and postage 433,274 574,100
Fisers and subscriphon 1,689 553 702012
Prirding a&nd statiorany 156,09 188,068
Repairs and mainbenance 5ET E3) 533,450
Wehicles runaing And maintenance 245020 291 448
Legal and professional 245,000 B35, N
Auditers” remunerabion A B405TS 640575
Advarzement 3000 14 2682
Daprociation 6.1 174,700 115628
Oéhers 219,035 346,005
B R R
Audit fes 420,000 420,000
Hal¥ poar raview 115,500 115500
Cithesr professional senioes 64 575 o4 57%
Gl al packel mpenses 40 500 20500
Bal AT a0 515
| 24, |SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Fringhl chargpas 227214 3561073

Traveling and conveyance 46T, T8 .
Chhars 1,328,172 1,235 623

A, US4, JHi 4 B2 50
FINANCE COST

Bank Changes and Commisson EAREAT 1,514 Bod

Interest markoup an long larm boan - el i | - -
88227 151486

EER) \nterest markup oa loan 14 1,519,835 1 814,948

Urmainding of relabsd delarmad income 15 {1,519,835) {1 Atd 949)

| 28, | PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Currant
for th yoar 1,444 317 1,263,530
for price yvears 134 529 (500, T81)
1,500 146 B3, 148
Dedprmed w2 = ¥
1575146 763,140
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
A T R T e

m Retationship between accounting loss and tax expense

The relstionship between tax sxpense and sccounling peoft has nol bean presanted in those financial
stafemants 33 the Income of The Company i5 sublsd] fo minimum fax and final tax. Tha prowision for cusmend
maxalicn B mads under saction 113, 154 and 169 of tha Income Tax Ordinanca, 2001,

ELF] Delorred tax asset works ouf b Rs. 817 milion (2021 Rs, 7.89 million) which & not recognized in thess
francial stadements in view of un-ceriain future resulls, B comprisas of the foliowing,

[ Fuposs | Rupees

Diflarence bobween accounting and tax basis of pssels 504.049 711,552
Tax lossas camad farsard 8674 053 (7.0 e, 0E0)
KMhamum (ax credils under secBon 113 . 11,385,043}

{B, 170,003 (7 BG.5T7)

| 27, |(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

(Lass] for the year (Rupess) (2.200.075) {8, 703, 308)
Winghied average number of ordinany shanes (Aumber| 3,400 000 3400, 000
[Loss) per share - Basie and dikuted {Rupees) (1085} {20

m There i no dlutive effect on the basic eaming per share of ihe Company

E REMUNERATION OF CHIEEF EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS

Chief execulive Direcior

Rupees
b az | om | a2 | 2 | am | am |

Ramunaration 2304000 2,304,000 1,152,000 1,152,000 3,456,000 3,455,000
Hizusing rent alowance 1036 00 1,005 B0 572000 L2 noa i 258 AGO 1,558 A0
Lisdites 232500 254, 200 e 000 128,000 385,200 L]

1600000  3A00000  1.R00.000 1500000 5400000 5400000
Mumber of parsons { i . 1 2 2

m The Compary has also provided mobde and tha Comgany maintained vehide fo a direciar, The monatary
wvaius of thesa benafils in s 306,300 /- | 2021: Rs. 423 630(- )
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Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
R e e e e R |

ﬂ Fimarclal risk mana

gement objectives and pollcie

Ther Comgpany's objectives in managing rsks is the creation and protection of sharehoiders’ value, Risk ks nhemnt in
the compam’s activitios, but 3 is managed through 8 process of ongaing identification, measurament and manitoring,
subject b risk fimits ard ciher controls, The process of risk managamen B cribical %o e company's continuation. The
company i exposed o credil ik, fiquidty sk and markel sk arsing from the financial instnuments i holds

Thia company frances &5 oparatons through equity, bomowing and management of working capital with a view Io
FRERLAN a0 BRpropnate mix ameng waious sources of Snances to minimize sk,

e T el
IEXN Financial insinaments by category
Financial assals ot amorized cost
Long lnrm deposts 1,409 612 1409512
Tradé debis Z1.4T8,T64 15,171,128
Loash and bank balances 2530, 184 4334710
25419120 FiH 915|t5|
Financial kabilties at amomized cosi
Leng baim loan 9872 996 TLHT 155
Short term bank Bormawings (Refer Moo 1) 112 520,005 112,529,005
Long tem Enancing [Refer Mol 19 45803 419 45,903,415
Infernsl [ mark up payabis &8.200.158 &5 200, 158
Trade and ofhar payailes 51,240,845 54 420,256

Y ET!EE Eﬂ' 2RLBET

m Cradifl risk expasure and conceniration of crodit ridk

Lrndil fisk is B risk which arises with B possbilty that one party to a financial instrument wil fail io discharge its
cioigabons and case the othar parly o incur @ fnancial losa. Tha company atiempls to condmol cred® sk and
concanfration of credd risk by mondoring crodil exposure, Emifing fransaction with specific counlemarties and
eontinully Fsgossng the credil wartiness of couslamartios.

Concentration of credit risk arise when a number of counlarparties are engaged in smilar business activiles of have
simiar ecoromic features ihal would causs (her abilfy lo mest conbraciual ocbligaions o be simiarly affected by
changes in eoonomic, polifcal or other cordliors. Comcentralions of credil Ask indicale tho mlative sons®ety of the

Company's performance ko devolopments affecting a pariculsr indusiry.
Thir maimum exporsaie b0 oredt sk a1 T raportng dale is as folows:

Finsncial sssets al amortized cost

Lang term depasits 1,408,612 b 408,612

Trada dobls 22 AT8 Th4 15,171,124

Banlk balances 2441735 4,783,168
B TN

Due ko Company's kong slanding relations with courter paries and afer ghing due conskdaraSion ko their financial
standing, the mansgement does nof axpecl non perdoemanca by these countar pardes on their obigatons o e
Compay

For rade debis, credit quality of cusiomens & assessed taking into considaration thedr financial posion and pravious
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- Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
i s e

5 ¥ F

dealings and on that basis, individual credi mis ore sel Moreower, the managemeni reguiarly monions and rEvees
cusiomens’ cradl enpoture. The credil isk exposura s limited in respect of bank balances as (hese are placed wit the
banlks hawing good credi rating from intermational and local cradit retrg agencies. Trada debls consiloned good are not
pasd dua.

T T e S A T T

Liquidity risk is ther risk that the company wil encounter difficulty i meeting its Snancial obligations as hey fall due. The
compary's appraach fa managing Bquidity 5 %o ensure, s far as possibla, that it will have suihicent Bquidity fo meel (8
liabélifias whan due. undar both nommal and $iress conditions withaul n:-:r'rf;-ﬂmn'-ama losses ol kg damage i
the company's reputation, Bul due B nabee ol business, unavadabilty of propor ¢xport orders and bad GConoMC
ponditiona, the managemant of the company is making thair efor for recoveres. from parfes. and assune thal ey
peovida financial suppon 1o Company in me2bng #3 obhgabons.

Folirwing are the conlraciual maturtes of fnancial abilties as al June 30, 2022 and 2041
l..1rr:|l|n|; Conkractual O o e
Within one year
“ : : PSS
Rupoas —

Long lerm lkan 672 5 17,378 8O0 . 17,376,850

Short teem bank borrowings {Reder Nale 18] 252805 112529905 112 524 505

Lorg lerm financing 46,903 419 46,903,410 45803419

Fhenesl | mark up payalie B8, 200,158 5 200, 158 9,200,158

Trade and other payatdes 58,240, 040 51,240,545 ot 240 940 .
mw—m.m ' f| T7 e, a0

Larrying Contractual Oneto flve
amaunt cash flows yoars
— RLpeas s
Long farm koan 12,227,155 17,376 500 . 17,376,850
Short tarm bark bormowirgs (Fatar Mate 18] 112,529,905 {112 529,905 112,526 505 .
Lo larm faanang 46,603 410 46903410 45503414 -
berigl | Pnar up payable B6,200,158 85,200, 154 50,200,158 %

Trade and other paystiles E-l: 420, E.rE 54 420,256 o5 420 E'Erﬁ

Condractual cash flows r.f'-l;r-; larm ﬁn.1n|:.ng and shorl term bormwings do mdd ncluce any inlares! | mark up
lar Be reasors sxplamad in Mole 18

Markai rizk i the risk sl changes in marked prica, such as loneign exchangs rales, inferest rates and eguily prces will
affect the Compamy's income or Te valeo of its holdings of fmancal instruments. The Company is not signicantly
#xposnd i maned risk 29 al rsporiing dals

FOMEGN CUMBNCY risk i4 e risk that o foir valie oF Aofure cash fows of foanta instnaments will Nuctuate becauss of
chamges in forelgn cumency rates, The Company (s exposad 1o currency sk in respect of net amounl of fonggn trade
debls and advance from foreign customars amaunting fa Rs. 14.76 milion (2021: 6.08 milion), Change of 100 bass
ool in exchaceys rabe will not Bave any significant impact on the: results of e Compay.

e e R o P e R sy T - o
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
A I NS

Inleresi rale rsk & the risk that the Tair value o fulure cash fiows of a francal nsfrumend Wil fochaste becayss of
changes in markel inlonest males

Maiorty of indemst rabe itk from baric arses from long berm and short larm boimowings fnom Ganks. The Company is
nicd axposed o any Ygrificant inferes! rate risk as markup on these borowings i not baing made for |Reder Nole 13
and 16},

Fair value of financhsl Instruments

Thir camying waiue of all the financial assets and fnancal Babifties redecied in tha fnancal stalemaents approimile
frair Tair valsss, Fair valus i e prics that would be recoived 1o sell an assel o paid [0 transfer o liability in an ordary
fransaction betwean market participants at ke measuremant data

Capital risk mansgément

The Company's objecives whan managing capial are lo saleguard the Company's abdily 10 conlinue a5 a gong
comcen, 50 that il can conbnue 9 oroide relurns Tor sharehoiders and benalils for othor stakeholders and o masmtan
an opfimal copetal struchure bo reduce the cost of capital

Debi i caloulated =5 total axdteenal bormowangs Clong dem hnantng’ and 'shod jemm borowings . a8 showm iIn e
sl of fnarcial pesfion) induding related mark up payable. Equity comprses of shase capital, lan from dnechor
and accumaated st a8 ahowm in [he slabement of financal position under “shara capilal and rosanas’. Tha Company
& expoead Yo capital risk and has lomuisted a plan b0 address [he same a5 disclossd in Mote 1.2

E TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIE 5

Tha EF'T“DJ'-] CaFmas ool rarsachons with redaled partes in e mormal courde ol busemess which comgetsa ol dusclors and Ry
management personme], The amounts dug 1o mialsd party i disclosed in Maole 13 and 14 o the financial stalements and
remungration fo Cheil Execulive and Dirsciors i3 disclosed in Mote 28, Detail of tansactions with related partes, which amn nol
5I:rEl:=":EI:'_|' discloged alsowhans in thets Frarcia) stalameis, are 35 foloas

Mama of related actlens e .
B Rasis of relationshig Transactions carrled out

party during {he yoar

Lang erm kan
CEOQ | 15.26 % shareholding) Obared 5,670,200 55,512600

Repad 3,580,000

br. Muhammad
Sakesm dhmaed

=hor e loan
pbiained and reped 8,057 500

Long te=m loan
Mr UmerAhmed  Diector | 0000 % sharsholding)  Ctblained SER 245 8,425,904
Reqaid . 2,153,350

Shorl term kaan
obiained and repaid 613,755 -

| 3. [PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTIO N

I viaw of Bha paculiae rature of the businass carnaed an by the Comparry, (he canacty of e (annenes i nol detarminstie,
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022
TR R T

HUMBER OF PERSONS EMPLOYED BY THE COMPAN Y

MNamiber of amplnyess 3l e year end iq di
Averagh nuimbe of employees duning e yea it 42
| 31 [OATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

]
The $nancial statamants have Bean aisharsed for issua by the Board of Direcians of the Company on 07 Oclober EI:IF!_E_

Forcad Snarcs of Rs. 24 88 millon was induded in expod refinante under e hesd of shor 1erm borcwings. This 18 dsciosond
ps 3 sepaenis bne flem urder e same head for e purpess of batter presantafion and comparsan

w Figurais have baan rounded off 1o the naarest Rupaes

\

MUHAMMAD SALEEM AHMED | HAIEE‘EHMEH UMER AHMED
Chief Execuiive Chief Financial Offier Director




:z PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2022

& NUMBER OF SHARE HOLDINGS SHARES HELD
SHAREHOLERS FROM TO OF RS, 10V- EACH
252 I 100 12,250
187 {1} 500 37.650
34 s01 LW 32,500
47 LU SR 50,400
T S001 10000 36,000
7 B5001 SO000 B10,000
1 100001 105000 1 0, 00
I 165000 1 70000 167,804
2 135000 1 90000 368,000
| 27530010 28000 280,000
I 310001 31506300 311,300
| 325001 EELILEN] 330,040
i 330001 335000 334,300
1 515000 520000 518,900
355 3,400, (00
= e
CATEGORIES OF MO, OF MO OF HOLIMNG
SHAREHOLDERS | AREHOLDE |SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
Individuals 552 3,302 500 9978
Investment Companies 2 5,700 0.17
Joimt Stock Companics I | RO (.05
555 R TR | [k, (R




DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
T T T TSR

AS PER REQUIREMENT OF CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

NO. OF SHARES PERCENTAGE]
SHAREHOLDERS  HELD

Associted Companics kIL MIL -
Mutual Fands:
MOPF - Trostee Depit (SIT) i X500 11
Inwvestment Comp. of Pakistan l | SO0 0,03
K 0 i
Sate Life Insurance Corporation 1 |67 800 4.
|Rirsgtors, thelr sposes & Miner children:
Mr. M. Saleesm Ahmed Chief Executive 1 SIR 900 15.26
Champerson
Mrs. Rubina Julali WO M. Saleem Alomed | 30,300 9.16
Dhrecior
Mr. Azcem Ahmaed S0 M. Saleem Ahmexd I 1,000 0,03
Mrector
br. Umer Ahumed 580 M. Saleermn Ahmed I 3060 0.1
Wir. M. Shoah Ahmed [Mrectar | 330,004 4.7l
Mrs. Veronique Ahmed WD . Shoatb Ahmed 1 334,800 9,83
M. Nayyer Ahmed Drector I G0 L]
Sponsors’ asspeoates & friends: 12 1,282,500 nn
Oleer Individuals: 533 444 (WD | A
555 34000, (b 1l
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Proxy FORM
i T T ST

I'We
of
being member (s) of Pak Leather Crafts Limited and a holder of ordinary shares,
hereby appoint of
whao is also a member of the company
vide Folio Mo. as mylour proxy to attend and vote for

melus and on mylour behalf at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Saturday 29" October 2022 at 06:00 p.m.or al any
adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2022

Please aflix
Revenue Stamp
O Bg, 1K=

Signature of Witness

Shareholder's Folio Mo, Mumber of Shares held

IMPORTANT:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. Mo person shall act
as a proxy, who is not a member of the company except that a company
may appoint a person who is not a member.

2. An instrument of proxy duly stamped, and witnessed and the power of
attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a materially
certified copy of such power or authority, in order to be valid, musl be
deposited at the registered office of the Company at least 48 hours bafore
the time of the meeating.

: Signature should agree with the specimen signature registered with the
Company.

4, If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument
of proxy are deposited by a member with the company, all such instrument
of proxy shall be rendered invalid

FOR CDC ACCOUNT HOLDERS/ICORPORATE ENTITIES:
In addition to the above the following requirements have to be met:

The Proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and
CMIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be furnished with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
meating.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors' resolution/power of attorney
with specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier)
alongwith proxy form of the Company.
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